
NORMAN FORWARD  
EAST AND CENTRAL LIBRARIES AD HOC ADVISORY BOARD 

 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING CONFERENCE ROOM 

201 WEST GRAY, NORMAN, OK 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2016 
 

3:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. REVIEW OF MINUTES FROM JANUARY 5, 2016, MEETING 

a. Action item:  Motion to approve or reject the minutes 
 
 
3. CONCEPT DESIGN PRESENTATION FROM MEYER, SCHERER & 

ROCKCASTLE, LTD., (MSR) FOR THE NEW CENTRAL LIBRARY AND 
THE EAST LIBRARY BRANCH. 

 
 
4. MISCELLANEOUS DISCUSSION 
 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT 

 



NORMAN FORWARD EAST AND CENTRAL LIBRARIES AD HOC ADVISORY GROUP 
 

January 5, 2016 
 

The Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc Advisory Group of the City of Norman, Cleveland 
County, Oklahoma, met in the Municipal Building Conference Room at 201 West Gray on the 5th day of January, 
2016, at 3:05 p.m.  Notice and agenda of the meeting were posted at the Municipal Building 48 hours prior to the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Members Karjala, Kimberling, Kloesel, 
Seamans, and Chairman Mauldin 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 

 
Item 1.  WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS. 
 
Mayor Rosenthal thanked the Ad Hoc Advisory Group members for volunteering to serve on the Board and said 
she is looking forward to working with them.  Each member introduced themselves (Tim Mauldin, Carla 
Kimberling, Aleisha Karjala, Andrew Seamans, and Kevin Klosel) and stated their occupation.   
 

***** 
 
Item 2.  OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEE CHARGE. 
 
Mr. Jeff Bryant, City Attorney, highlighted the charge of the Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc 
Advisory Group (Library Advisory Group) as follows: 
 

• Meet with project consultants regarding timeline of projects 
• Review and make recommendations regarding elements for concept design 
• Review and make recommendations regarding elements of final design 
• Assist in public meetings to be held during phases of conceptual and final designs 
• Report on progress of construction at ground breaking 50% completion and 100% completion 
• Assist and make recommendations regarding grand opening of projects 
• Report to the Council regarding progress of assignments 

 
Mr. Bryant said the Library Advisory Group’s expected duration is three years or until both libraries are open.  He 
said the City Clerk’s Office will be the main Staff support for Library Advisory Group as well as Capital Projects 
Staff, Public Works Staff, and Legal Staff, when needed. 
 

Items submitted for the record 
1. Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc Advisory Group Committee Charge 
2. File No. AP-1516-17 dated December 17, 2015, by Brenda Hall, City Clerk 

 
***** 

 
Item 3.  ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNANCE ITEMS. 
 
Mr. Bryant said organization and governance items include quorum and attendance, meeting process and decorum, 
Open Meetings Act, and Open Records Act. 
  



Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc Advisory Group 
January 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 
Item 3, continued: 
 
Quorum and Attendance 
 

• A quorum shall be that whole number equal or exceeding the simple majority of those individuals 
authorized to be members  

• A concurring vote of a quorum shall be necessary to initiate or transact any action or business 
• Only appointive members shall vote, each having one vote 
• All meetings should be attended and members are subject to removal if they are absent themselves from 

three consecutive meetings 
 
Meeting Process and Decorum 
 

• The Library Advisory Group is an advisory group and final decisions are made by Council 
• Members, Staff, and audience will speak after being recognized by the Chair 
• Members are expected to respect each other and respect others opinions 
• Robert’s Rules of Order is suggested to assist in discussion and decision making processes 

o Action by motion made and duly seconded, then followed by discussion of the motion 
o Actions can only be reconsidered before adjournment of meeting and motion to reconsider can 

only be made by one voting originally voting in favor of the action to be reconsidered 
 
Open Meetings 
 

• All meeting of boards, commissions, committees, subcommittees, and ad hoc committees shall be subject 
to the Open Meeting Act (OMA) and State Title 74 provisions 

• Basic requirements include advanced public notice of meetings noting place, time, subject matter 
• A meeting is when a majority of members are present physically discussing business of the committee OR 

a majority of members conducting committee business electronically (use of email to discuss committee 
business is strong discouraged and members should avoid “reply all” to avoid confusion of whether that 
constitutes a meeting) 

• City Staff will handle posting and minutes of the meetings 
o Establish a regular meeting schedule 
o Regular meeting agendas will be posted 24 hours in advance 
o Special meeting agendas will be posted 48 hours in advance 
o Agendas and minutes will be posted on the City of Norman website 
o Minutes will be a summary of the meeting highlighting action items 

 
Open Records Act 
 

• Definition of document is pretty broad and is defined as, “regarding the transaction of public business, the 
expenditure of public funds, or the administering of public property.” 

 
Mr. Bryant said his best advice is to limit discussions to meetings duly called for that purpose and properly posted.  
He told members to be cognizant than in the age of electronic emails there may be circumstances where the Open 
Meeting Act could be violated.   
 
Mr. Bryant said if there is in an instance where the Chair cannot make the meeting the Library Advisory Group 
can elect a Vice-Chair and the only other option would be not to hold the meeting.   
 
  



Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc Advisory Group 
January 5, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
Item 3, continued: 
 
Chairman Mauldin asked if it would be appropriate to vote for a Vice-Chair at this time and Mr. Bryant said yes.  
Chairman Mauldin suggested Member Kimberling as a good candidate as she serves on the Norman Library Board 
and asked for other nominations and hearing none ceased nominations and moved that Carla Kimberling be 
elected as Vice-Chair, which motion was duly seconded by Member Klosel; and the question being upon Carla 
Kimberling being elected Vice-Chair, a vote was taken with the following result: 
 

YEAS:     Members Karjala, Kimberling, Kloesel, 
Seamans, and Chair Mauldin 

 
 NAYES:   None 
 
Chair Mauldin declared the motion carried and Carla Kimberling was elected as Vice-Chair. 

 
Items submitted for the record 

1. Norman Forward Ad Hoc Advisory Committees Governance Items 
 

***** 
 
Item 4.  PRESENTATION BY MSR DESIGN REGARDING THE NEW CENTRAL AND EAST 
LIBRARY PROJECTS AND TIMELINES. 
 
Mr. Jeff Scherer, Meyer, Scherer and Rockcastle (MSR) Design and Former Principle in Charge of Library 
Projects, introduced Mr. Anders Dahlgren, Library Planning Associates, Inc., MSR Sub-Consultant, and Mr. Matt 
Kruntorad, MSR Principle in Charge of the Library Projects.   
 
Mr. Scherer said the Norman Forward election authorized $39 million for a Central Library and $5 million for an 
East Branch Library and felt that money will be adequate if the projects stay on schedule.  Staying on schedule 
means bids and contracts awarded by October 2016.  He said between now and May this will be rather intense 
process and Library Advisory Group will need to decide how much and how often they want to meet and at the 
meetings they need to be bold and clear about what they like and do not like.  MSR will focus on how design of 
the libraries relate to the community, how they relate to the site, and how they relate to other big picture issues.  
He said MSR is more than happy to accept criticism, comments, and suggestions during this process, but at the end 
of the day MSR has the responsibility to make its best recommendation to the Library Advisory Group.  If the 
nature of the Library Advisory Group is to be more proactively involved in every little decision, MSR will need to 
restructure the way they are planning to work on this process and meet with the group often.  He said these 
decisions do not need to be made today and can wait until the next meeting, but he wanted to make the Library 
Advisory Group aware of the intensity that will be needed for the timeline for the projects.  He said creating a 
cultural asset is a complicated thing especially when being created for decades to come so MSR wants to provide a 
design for the libraries that will serve Norman well over the next 50 to 100 years.  The best libraries being built 
today are the ones that are really trying to comprehend how information change is happening, how that is working 
world wide, and how communities are embracing that change.   
 
  



Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc Advisory Group 
January 5, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Item 4, continued: 
 
Mr. Kruntorad said the library projects are the largest projects Norman has taken on for many years and MSR does 
not take that lightly because libraries are a highly important piece of a community and important investment in the 
community.  He said that does not just come through brick and mortar, it comes through how people interact with 
it, how they engage it, and how they see it.  He said the Library Advisory Group will hear a lot of detail comments 
from people who want to inject the color pink or the color blue into the projects, but the big picture is the most 
important component.   
 
Mr. Kruntorad said the City of Norman Library Master Plan has been MSR’s base guide and Mr. Dahlgren is 
building more detail into the design plans daily.  He said MSR is starting at zero on the design and building the 
libraries from the inside out, which is key because a user’s experience in a library is not necessarily what they see 
walking up to the building but how they interact between spaces with people.  He said the libraries will be multi-
generational facilities where children, seniors, millennials, etc., can come together and interact in some way.  The 
educational programming is a very important piece as well, how that is accessed, and how that plays out through 
the design.   
 
MSR will be finalizing the East Branch Library conceptual design this week and the Central Library conceptual 
design this month.  He said there will be input from Library Staff and Leadership on the programming as well as 
input from the City.  The overall goals and guiding principles for design include: 
 

• Flexible and adaptable – space than can adapt to future changes with ease 
• Inviting – making the library a destination for the public 
• Diverse – creating a welcoming environment for a wide variety of users and activities 
• Services – a design that functions well for the Staff and public 
• Sustainable – embracing the natural environment 
• Innovative – spaces with enduring value 

 
Mr. Kruntorad reviewed proposed site options for each library and said MSR is looking at key design points such 
as clear/direct parking access; direct street access; simple arrival/deliveries; connection to nearby amenities such as 
parks or trails; solar access; storm water management; visual presence; proper scale; slow zones; views; and 
plazas.   
 
Mr. Kruntorad highlighted the proposed timeline for each library as follows: 
 
Central Library 
 
2016 

• January through February – concept design 
• March – public presentation  
• March through May – design development 
• June through September – contract documents 
• October through November – bidding 
• December – award contract 

 
2017/2018 

• Construction 
 
2019 

• January - move in and grand opening 
  



Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc Advisory Group 
January 5, 2016 
Page 5 
 
Item 4, continued: 
 
East Branch Library 
 
2016 

• January through February – concept design 
• March – public presentation  
• March through May – design development 
• Mid-May through Mid-August – contract documents 
• August – bidding 
• September– award contract 
• September through December - construction 

 
2017 

• January through Mid-September – construction 
• Mid-September through November – move in and grand opening 

 
Mr. Kruntorad said furnishings and educational equipment decisions would be discussed at the end of the process 
closer to finish of construction.  He said the design concept will have placeholders for furniture and equipment so 
the Library Advisory Group will have an idea of where these items will be placed in the building.  He said 
furnishings and equipment change quickly in the industry so you do not want to choose those too early in the 
process.   
 
Mr. Scherer said, in his opinion, meetings are more productive if the group has information to review prior to the 
meeting and asked how far in advance the group would want the packet of information in order have time to 
review it and Chairman Mauldin said a couple of days.  Ms. Brenda Hall, City Clerk, said if the group met on a 
Monday, the agenda and packet of information could be sent to the group the Friday before the meeting and asked 
if that would be sufficient and members concurred.   
 
Chairman Mauldin said going forward it would be helpful if the agenda items could be distinguished as actual 
action items needing discussion and recommendations from the Library Advisory Group versus informational 
material that would simply be useful information for the Library Advisory Group. 
 
Member Kloesel said he sees a lot of glass in the building concept designs presented today and glass sometimes 
provides seamless transition from inside to outside the library, but in a State where hail and tornadoes are the norm 
this could prove to be a safety issue.  He would like to add the word “safe” to the goals and objectives, which 
could be accomplished under the goals of adaptable and sustainable.  Mr. Scherer said the Central Library has a 
funding placeholder for a safe room, but it could be difficult to determine the size of that room based on the 
number of people utilizing the library at any given time.  He is not sure if there is funding for a safe room for the 
East Branch Library, but will check into that. 
 

Items submitted for the record 
1. East Library Project Schedule 
2. Central Library Project Schedule 
3. PowerPoint entitled, “Norman Central and East Branch Libraries Library Advisory Group,” dated 

January 5, 2016 
 

***** 
 
  



Norman Forward East and Central Libraries Ad Hoc Advisory Group 
January 5, 2016 
Page 6 
 
Future Meetings 
 
Mr. Scherer said meeting once a month would be a good schedule for meetings and Chairman Mauldin suggested 
future meetings be held once a month on Monday at 3:00 p.m. and members concurred.  If anything comes up 
between meetings, the Library Advisory Ad Hoc Group can schedule a special meeting.   
 

***** 
 
There being no further business, Member Karjala moved that the meeting be adjourned, which motion was duly 
seconded by Member Kimberling and the question being upon adjournment of the meeting, a vote was taken with 
the following result: 
 

YEAS:     Members Karjala, Kimberling, Klosel, 
Seamans, and Chairman Mauldin 

 
 NAYES:   None 
 
The Chairman declared the motion carried and the meeting was adjourned at 4:03 p.m. 
 


















































































































































	Jan 5 Library Ad Hoc Advisory Minutes.pdf
	The Chairman declared the motion carried and the meeting was adjourned at 4:03 p.m.


